
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

DEED, TRUST 
AND 

OBLIGATIONS 
COMMITTEE

Councillor A R Lloyd (Chairman)
Councillor J A Kite MBE (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor S H Brown
Councillor M J Davis
Councillor K M Kelly
Councillor R Lees

Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor D Swinerd

Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow

Mr R Estcourt (Independent Member)
Mrs E Evans (Independent Member)
Mr M Hussey (Independent Member)
Mr S Maynard (Independent Member)

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Monday 27 July 2015

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford



This page is intentionally left blank



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Monday 27 July 2015

Guiding Principles 
 
In its decision making, the Charitable Trustee is bound by a number of guiding principles: 
 
(a) that it  acts  reasonably  i.e.  decisions should  be  within  the  range  of decisions which a 

reasonable body of trustees could have made; 
 
(b) that it acts within  the powers conferred upon  it and  the established  rules for procedures for 

dealing with issues of the kind under consideration; 
 
(c)  that it acts in good faith; 
 
(d) that it adequately informs itself in order to make the decision in question, including  a  

comprehensive  risk  analysis  and  where  necessary,  makes further  enquiries  and  where  
appropriate,  considers  legal  and  other professional advice; 

 
(e) that it does not take into consideration any factors which it is not proper for it to take into 

account; 
 
(f) that it considers any factors which it should take into account.

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board or 
Managing Director.

3. Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2015 
(Pages 1 - 6)

4. Hesketh Park and Dartford Cricket Club (Pages 7 - 18)
To consider representations received following the public notice given 
by the Council acting as Charitable Trustee.





1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee held on 
Tuesday 14 April 2015.

PRESENT: Councillor A R Martin (Chairman)
Councillor J A Kite, MBE (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor M J Davis
Councillor K M Kelly
Councillor P Kelly
Councillor T A Maddison
Councillor D Swinerd
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow

INDEPENDENT 
MEMBERS:

Mr Richard Estcourt, Mr Martin Hussey and Mr Stephen Maynard

ABSENT: Mrs Elissia Evans (Independent voting co-optee), Councillor Sue 
Butterfill

Dartford Borough Council Officers:-

Sarah Cotton – Solicitor

18. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence had been received from Mrs Elissia Evans 
Independent (voting co-optee) and from Councillor Sue Butterfill.

The Chairman welcomed Richard Estcourt, Martin Hussey and Stephen 
Maynard to their first DTOC meeting in a decision making capacity [voting co-
optees] following confirmation of their appointments as Independent members 
of the Committee by Cabinet on 23 October 2014. He also welcomed 
Councillors Keith Kelly, Drew Swinerd and Pat Kelly to the Committee, 
following their nomination by their respective Group Leaders.

The Chairman expressed his sadness at the recent passing of Peter Draper 
on 14 February 2015, following a protracted illness. Peter had served on the 
Committee since October 2010 as one of four original Independent’s and had 
been re-elected to office for a further 4 year term in October 2014. He had 
also held office as a Dartford Borough Councillor [Brent Ward] in the mid–late 
1960s and 1970s, in addition to becoming a Kent County Councillor during the 
1970s. As an Independent (voting co-optee) Peter Draper had brought his 
own unique skills set and views to the Committee’s deliberations and had 
richly fulfilled the role of Independent as envisaged by the Charities 
Commission. Sadly his final illness had prevented him from taking up his 
further appointment with the Committee and his contributions to the 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14 APRIL 2015

2

Committee’s work would be missed. The Chairman asked that all present join 
him in observing a short period of silence and reflection in memory of Peter.

It was noted that all new Committee members (Councillors and Independents) 
had received the appropriate Charity and specific Conflicts of Interest training 
from the Council’s Head of Legal Services and Solicitor respectively. 

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The Chairman reminded the Committee, in particular the new Members; of the 
Guiding Principles it was bound by in its decision making as Charitable 
Trustee; as set out on the summary page of the Agenda, prior to formally 
requesting any declarations of interest.

No declarations of interest were made and the Council Solicitor confirmed, at 
the Chairman’s request, that Cabinet Members present were not conflicted 
over any items on the agenda.

20. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 
2014 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2014 be confirmed as 
accurate.

21. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE 

The Chairman noted the presence of Mr R P Ryan in the public gallery and 
thanked him for his letter of 25 March 2015 addressed to the Chairman and 
Members of the Committee, which had been placed before the Committee on 
a tabled basis that evening.

The Chairman noted that many of the points addressed by Mr Ryan in this 
latest letter had been answered previously by Officers [exchange with Mr 
Ryan of October 2014] and discussed by the Committee at their meeting on 
14 October 2014. It was noted that Mr Ryan had attended that meeting as a 
member of the public and was therefore aware of the Committee’s 
discussions on that date. [Copies of the October 2014 exchange with Mr Ryan 
had been attached to the tabled document].  

The Chairman proposed that Mr Ryan’s current letter [25 March 2015] be 
dealt with by Officers in the first instance and asked the Solicitor to prepare a 
draft response for his signature as Chairman. For the future, the Chairman 
suggested that any further correspondence from Mr Ryan be processed by 
Officers in the first instance rather than as a tabled document and the 
outcome subsequently reported to the Committee as necessary. However, he 
appreciated that his proposal would be a decision for the new Chairman and 
incoming Committee to make, following the Borough elections on 7 May.



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14 APRIL 2015

3

Following discussion by the Committee; it was agreed that the draft response 
being prepared by Officers to Mr Ryan’s letter of 25 March should be seen by 
all members of the Committee for comment prior to signature by the 
Chairman; given that the Committee as a whole was acting as Charitable 
Trustee. The Solicitor noted these final requirements.

22. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED:

That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), the  press and public present be excluded from the remainder of 
the meeting for the final item of business on the grounds that it involves the 
likely disclosure of exempt information.

The Chairman thanked Mr Ryan for his attendance in the pubic seating area, 
prior to formally requesting that he vacate the meeting.

23. HESKETH PARK AND DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB - ADDENDUM TO 
SURVEYOR'S REPORT 

The report from the Council’s Solicitor enclosed an addendum and original 
report from Watson Day Chartered Surveyors [attached as Appendices A and 
B respectively]. The Committee, acting as Charitable Trustee, was asked to 
approve the proposals for the surrender and grant of a new lease to the 
Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited or the Dartford Cricket Club (“the Club”). 

The Solicitor advised that her report followed on from the verbal update given 
by the Head of Legal Services to the Committee on 14 October 2014 [Min. 
No. 17 final 3 paragraphs]. The addendum report dated 30 March 2015 
(Appendix A) updated the original report from Julian Scannell of Watson Day 
Chartered Surveyors of 17 June 2014 (Appendix B) presented to the 
Committee on 30 July 2014.  The map of Hesketh Park (attached as Appendix 
C) showed areas of land held by the Council in both its corporate capacity and 
as Charitable Trustee [edged in green and red respectively]. Only the 
Charitable land [edged in red] was the subject of the report. 

The addendum document from Julian Scannell at Appendix A dealt with 2 key 
changes to his original report [Appendix B] that had arisen during negotiations 
with the Club and comments from the external solicitor acting independently 
for the Council as Charitable Trustee.

The Committee were advised that the Club were in the process of seeking 
grant funding from the Council [in its corporate capacity] to meet the rental 
costs for the first 5 years of the new lease term.  A separate report in support 
of that grant funding application was due to be considered by Cabinet on 16 
April 2015. 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14 APRIL 2015

4

In conclusion the Solicitor advised the Committee that; if they were satisfied 
that the heads of terms outlined in the report (and appendices) for the 
surrender of the existing lease and the granting of the proposed new lease to 
the Club, were the best that could be reasonably obtained by the charity for its 
land holding in Hesketh Park; it would be necessary to advertise the 
proposals publically. 

The advice of the independent external solicitors [Bates, Wells and 
Braithwaite LLP] acting for the Council as Charitable Trustee; was that the 
lease proposals should be brought to the attention of the beneficiaries of the 
charity [the public of Dartford] by the placing of site notices erected around the 
perimeter of Hesketh Park. The Council’s Parks Department would be asked 
to monitor the notices to ensure that they remained in place.

The Committee undertook a comprehensive discussion of the report and 
appendices and noted the points made by Independent (voting co-optees), 
individual Councillors and the Chairman and Vice-Chairman respectively. At 
the conclusion of that discussion and on a unanimous basis, the Committee 
acting as Charitable Trustee RESOLVED to:

1. Note the contents of the addendum dated 30 March 2015 to the 
surveyor’s report of 17 June 2014 from Mr Julian Scannell of Watson 
Day, issued in compliance with the requirements of Section 119 the 
Charities Act 2011;

2. Confirm that it was satisfied that the heads of terms for the surrender 
of the existing lease and grant of a new lease to the Hesketh Park 
Sports Club Limited or the Dartford Cricket Club as outlined in the 
addendum and the surveyor’s report are the best that can reasonably 
be obtained by the charity;

3. Authorise the legal advisers appointed by the Council (as Charitable 
Trustee) to carry out all the legal work necessary to give effect to the 
agreed heads of terms for the surrender of the existing lease and 
grant of a new lease to the Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited or the 
Dartford Cricket Club as outlined in the report;

4. Authorise the issue of a public notice of the proposed lease in 
compliance with Section 121(2) of the Charities Act 2011;

5. Note that any representations received as a result of the public notice 
would be the subject of a further report to the Committee. 

24. CHAIRMAN'S VALEDICTORY 

In bringing the meeting to a close, the Chairman Councillor Tony Martin 
expressed his thanks to all Members and Independents who had served on 
the Committee during his time in office, which he had thoroughly enjoyed. He 
also thanked Officers for their support and guidance, in particular the Head of 
Legal Services, the Committee Co-ordinator and the Solicitor. 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14 APRIL 2015

5

He wished the Committee well in all its future endeavours as Charitable 
Trustee for the Council, following his decision not to seek re-election as a 
Borough Councillor on 7 May. 

The Committee asked that their appreciation of the Chairman’s significant 
contribution to the aims of the Deed, Trust and Obligations Committee during 
his term in office be recorded in the Minutes.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

Councillor A R Martin
CHAIRMAN





DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

HESKETH PARK AND DARTFORD CRICKET CLUB

1. Summary

1.1Members are asked to consider the letters of representation received following the 
public notice given by the Council acting as Charitable Trustee of the proposals to 
grant a new lease of land at Hesketh Park to Dartford Cricket Club Limited.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That, the Committee on behalf of the Council acting as Charitable Trustee:

2.1 Notes the contents of the two letters of representation received to the public 
notice given by the Council acting as Charitable Trustee to the proposals to 
grant a new lease of land at Hesketh Park to Dartford Cricket Club Limited. 

2.2 Having considered such representations, confirms whether or not to proceed 
with the surrender of the existing lease and grant of a new lease to the 
Dartford Cricket Club Limited on the terms already approved by the 
Committee as outlined in the previous report to the Committee on 14 April 
2015 [Minute No. 23].

2.3 If it resolves to proceed with the surrender of the existing lease and grant of a 
new lease to the Dartford Cricket Club Limited, reviews the existing 
arrangements for the advertising hoardings on the site and determines 
whether permission for such hoardings should continue to be granted on the 
same basis with the new tenant.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. Members should note that this report deals solely with the land held by 
the Council in its capacity as Charitable Trustee. The land held by the 
Council in its corporate capacity, upon which the new pavilion building 
and car park is situated, is not within the remit of this Committee and 
has been the subject of a separate report to Cabinet at its meeting on 
16 April 2015 [Minute No. 135].

3.2. At its meeting on 14 April, the Committee received a revised surveyor’s 
report from Watson Day LLP in compliance with the requirements of 
Section 119 the Charities Act 2011 and resolved as follows [Minute No. 
23]: 

“That, the Committee on behalf of the Council acting as Charitable 
Trustee:

(1) Notes the contents of the addendum dated 30 March 2015 to the 
surveyor’s report of 17 June 2014 from Mr Julian Scannell of 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

Watson Day, issued in compliance with the requirements of Section 
119 the Charities Act 2011. 

(2) Confirms that it is satisfied that the heads of terms for the surrender 
of the existing lease and grant of a new lease to the Hesketh Park 
Sports Club Limited or the Dartford Cricket Club as outlined in the 
addendum and the surveyor’s report are the best that can 
reasonably be obtained by the charity.

(3) Authorises the legal advisers appointed by the Council (as 
Charitable Trustee) to carry out all the legal work necessary to give 
effect to the agreed heads of terms for the surrender of the existing 
lease and grant of a new lease to the Hesketh Park Sports Club 
Limited or the Dartford Cricket Club as outlined in the report.

(4) Authorises the issue of a public notice of the proposed lease in 
compliance with Section 121(2) of the Charities Act 2011.

(5) Notes that any representations received as a result of the public 
notice will be the subject of a further report to the Committee.”

3.3. As reported to that meeting, the Council as Charitable Trustee were 
required under section 121(2) of the Act to give at least one month’s 
notice of the proposed lease, to invite representations and take 
account of any representations made within that period. This additional 
requirement is imposed as the land in question is held by or in trust for 
a charity, and the trusts on which it is so held stipulate that it is to be 
used for the purposes, or any particular purposes, of the charity.

3.4. Such public notice was given on 11 May 2015 by the placing of site 
notices around Hesketh Park in the form set out in Appendix A. The 
site notices were displayed in 9 different locations around the Park, and 
were regularly checked to ensure that they remained on display 
throughout the period for the receipt of representations, which expired 
on 12 June 2015.

3.5. During that period two letters of representation were received as a 
result of the public notice, copies of which are attached as Appendices 
B and C.

3.6. Members may wish to note the following points in relation to the first 
letter of representation at Appendix B from Mr L P Ryan, using the 
paragraph numbers quoted in that letter:

Paragraph Comments
1 Site notices are A4 in size for practical reasons, in 

terms of the ability to affix them on site and to ensure 
that they remain intact. The plan included with the 
notice was of the largest scale possible to 
accommodate the text of the notice. Had anyone 
asked for a larger scale plan, then this would have 
been supplied, either in electronic or paper format, 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

but no such requests were made.
2 The area leased to the Club will not include the area 

of the score box, but rather the Club will have the 
right to locate a score box either in its existing 
location or such alternative location as the Council 
may determine but so that the score box is visible 
from the Pavilion. As such, it was not necessary for 
the public notice to identify the area of the score box.

3 At the time the notice was given, it was unclear 
exactly which legal entity the Dartford Cricket Club 
would use to hold the proposed lease. Section 121 of 
the Act 2011 requires that public notice must be 
given of the proposed disposition. There is no 
prescribed form of public notice, and no requirement 
to include details of all the terms of the proposed 
lease. The minimum information recommended by 
the Charity Commission for a notice is as follows: 

(a) a statement that it is a notice for the purposes of 
s.121 of the Charities Act 2011;
(b) the name of the charity;
(c) the date by which representations are required – 
to comply with s.121(2) this must be not less than 
one calendar month from the posting of the notice;
(d) the full address or description of the land;
(e) the nature of the disposal (freehold sale, lease for 
x years, etc.); and
(f) the full postal address or email address to which 
representations should be sent. 

All these elements were included in the public notice. 
In addition, the form of the public notice and its 
content were approved by the external solicitors 
appointed by the Council as Charitable Trustee. 

The proposed tenant is now Dartford Cricket Club 
Limited, a registered society under the Co-operative 
and Community Benefit Societies Act 
2014(registration number 4051).

4 As noted above, there is no requirement to detail all 
the terms of the proposed lease. The form of the 
public notice and its content were approved by the 
external solicitors appointed by the Council as 
Charitable Trustee.

Final paragraph Any public notices given by the Council are not 
currently published on its website. 

3.7. Members may wish to note the following points in relation to the 
second letter of representation at Appendix C from Mr T M Theobald, 
using the paragraph numbers quoted in that letter



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

Paragraph Comments
2 The Council is not aware of any ongoing health and 

safety issues regarding the site. 
3 It would be impractical for the tenant to take 

responsibility for general litter clearance of the land, 
which litter may arise from the use of the Park by the 
public generally. However, the tenant will be required 
to keep the land clean and tidy in terms of its own 
use of the site.

4 The proposed lease will control any future 
alterations, although the Club will be entitled to place 
equipment on the site consistent with its use.

5 and 7 The new pavilion building is not within the remit of 
this Committee. However, the Council’s 
Environmental Health and Licensing section have 
both confirmed that there are no ongoing complaints 
with regard to the use of the pavilion building. One 
complaint was made about noise from the 
construction works, but these works have now been 
completed. There was one further complaint in 
December 2014 regarding noise emanating from the 
pavilion, but these appear to have been caused by 
the doors and windows of the building being left 
open. There have been no further complaints about 
noise since that date, and no statutory noise 
nuisance has ever been established.

The application for the variation of the club premises 
certificate was submitted at the end of January 2015 
and Licensing have confirmed that this application 
was advertised in accordance with procedures set 
out in the Licensing Act 2003 through the display of a 
site notice for the 28 day consultation period and the 
publication of the notice in a local newspaper. The 
notice also appeared on the Council’s website. Local 
residents would have had the opportunity to make 
representations on the variation application during 
that consultation period.

3.8 Members are asked to consider the representations and confirm 
whether or not they wish to proceed with the surrender of the existing 
lease and grant of a new lease to the Dartford Cricket Club Limited as 
outlined in the previous report to this Committee on 14 April 2015 
[Minute no. 23].

3.9 The advertising hoardings on the site were considered by this 
Committee at its meeting on 16 October 2012, and it was resolved as 
follows [Minute No.9]:



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

“(1) That the Committee, acting as Charitable Trustee, approves the 
proposal by Hesketh Park Sport Club Limited, commonly known 
as Dartford Cricket Club (the Club); to install sponsored 
advertising boards at identified locations around the Club’s 
cricket pitch as identified in [the drawing] to the submitted report;

  (2) That any gross income generated by the Club in excess of 
twenty thousand pounds sterling (£20,000) through the 
installation of the sponsored advertising boards be advised by 
the Club to the responsible Council Officer; with a view to the 
Trust giving further consideration to receiving a percentage of 
such gross annual income, as proposed [in] the submitted 
report.”

3.10 Members are asked to consider whether the same arrangement should 
remain in place for the proposed new tenant. No notification has been 
received from the Club that the gross income from sponsored 
advertising boards has exceeded the £20,000 limit. Watson Day LLP 
have commented that the existing arrangements are extremely 
generous and have suggested that a 50:50 apportionment of all gross 
income over £2,500 in any 12 month period would be much fairer to the 
Council as Charitable Trustee. The Club are being approached to 
discuss the advertising income, and there will be a further verbal 
update to the Committee on the outcome of such discussions.

4. Relationship to the Object(s) of the Trust

4.1 The object of the charity is as set out in the original trusts, and 
confirmed in the governing Scheme of Management, namely the use of 
the land as a recreation ground for the use of the inhabitants of 
Dartford.

4.2 All charities have charitable purposes or ‘aims’ that are for the public 
benefit. The Charities Act 2011 highlights this by explicitly including 
public benefit in the definition of a charitable purpose. The Council in its 
capacity as Charitable Trustee must be satisfied that its activities fall 
within the charitable aims and are for the public benefit.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications for 
the Trust

None at this stage.

Legal Implications for the 
Trust

The proposed lease will have the benefit of the 
security of tenure provisions of the Landlord and 
Tenant Act 1954. This will mean that the tenant 
will have the right to be granted a new lease on 
similar terms when the lease comes to an end. 
The Council as Trustee will only be able to 



DEED, TRUST AND OBLIGATIONS COMMITTEE
27 July 2015

oppose any such application for a new lease on 
limited statutory grounds, as set out in Section 
30(1) of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

Risk Implications for the 
Trust

None at this stage

6. Appendices

Appendix A -- Public Notice dated 11 May 2015

Appendix B – Letter of representation from Mr L P Ryan dated 29 May 
2015

Appendix C – Letter of representation from Mr T M Theobald dated 11 
June 2015

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Sarah Cotton
(01322) 34118

Legal 
Services  
Strategic 
Directorate 
(Internal 
Services)

N/A



A Public Notice for the purposes of Section 121 of The Charities Act 2011 

(lease of Property)

Dartford Borough Council as trustee of Hesketh Park Charity (the Charity) gives notice 

that the Charity proposes to grant a lease for a term of 25 years to the current tenant of the 

site Hesketh Park Sports Club Limited (or the Dartford Cricket Club) of Land at Hesketh 

Park, Dartford as shown edged red on the attached plan at the bottom of this notice; which is 

owned by the Charity.

Any representations or comments in relation to the proposed transaction should be sent for 

consideration to the following address by no later than 12 June 2015 for:

The Trustee of Hesketh Park Charity, Dartford Borough Council, Civic Centre, Home 

Gardens, Dartford, Kent DA1 1DR and quoting reference SC/LS45(3)el

Dated: 11 May 2015












	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2015
	4 Hesketh Park and Dartford Cricket Club
	Appendix A - Public notice for grant of lease
	Appendix B redacted DTOC 270715
	Appendix C Item 4 redacted DTOC 270715


